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. DEQA SION

This case is before the Public Enploynent Rel ations Board
(hereafter Board) on exceptions taken by the O ovis Federation
of Teachers (hereafter Federation) to the hearing officer's
reconmended decision. The Federation filed 13 specific
exceptions essentially objecting to the hearing officer's
concl usi on that speeches nade by the superintendent of the
Clovis Unified School District to teachers enpl oyed by the
District did not violate Governnent Code section 3543.5(a)
and (b).

The Board has considered the record as a whole and the



attached recomended decision in light of the exceptions. The
Board adopts the hearing officer's findings of fact and
conclusion that the superintendent's speeches were not
threatening and did not interfere with, restrain or coerce
enpl oyees in violation of Governnment Code section 3543.5(a)
and (b).l It does not adopt his rationale

To prove a violation of section 3543.5(a) it nust first be
shown that the enployer's conduct constitutes reprisals,
di scrimnation, threats of reprisals or discrimnation,
interference, restraint, or coercion. The Federation did not
make such a showing in this case. The hearing officer resolved
conflicting testinmony to determne the content of the
superintendent's speeches. Based on this determ nation, he
found that the Federation did not prove by a preponderance of
the evidence that the speeches threatened, interfered with,
restrained or coerced enployees. It follows that the speeches
are not conduct which violates section 3543.5(a). The Board
therefore finds it unnecessary to discuss whether the
superintendent's speeches were constitutionally protected or
whet her the District had any intent to interfere with enployee

rights.

lGov 1 aov. Code sec. 3543.5(a) and (b) provides:

It shall be unlawful for a public school enployer to:

(a) Inpose or threaten to inpose reprisals on enployees, to
discrimnate or threaten to discrimnate against enployees, or
otherwise to interfere with, restrain, or coerce enployees
because of their exercise of rights guaranteed by this chapter

(b) Deny to enployee organizations rights guaranteed to
them by this chapter.



In addressing the issue of whether or not the District
viol ated section 3543.5(b), the hearing officer was forced to
speculate as to which of its rights the Federation clained the
District violated. The Federation, in its charge, post-hearing
brief, and exceptions, charged violations of both subsections
(a) and (b) of section 3543.5, but provided no separate
argunent supporting its charge that the District violated
section 3543.5(b). If the Federation assunes that a violation
of enpl oyee rights under subsection (a) automatically
constitutes a violation of enployee organization rights under
subsection (b), the Board does not agree.

Assuming that a single act by the enployer can violate the
rights of both enpl oyees and enpl oyee organizations, the
charging party nmust argue specifically which rights of each are
violated. The Board will not speculate on this issue, and
therefore dismsses the Federation's charge that the District

viol ated section 3543.5(h).



ORDER
Upon the foregoing Decision and the entire record in this
case, the Public Employment Relations Board ORDERS that:
The hearing officer's dismissal of the unfair practice
charge filed by the Clovis Federation of Teachers, Local
No. 1463, against the Clovis Unified School District is

affirmed.

77 7 S -

fBy: Raymond J. Gonzales, Member Harry Gluck, Chairperson

f 4
Jerilou Cossack Twohey, Member



EDUCATI ONAL EMPLOYMENT RELATI ONS BOARD

OF THE STATE OF CALI FORNI A

In the Matter of: )
)
CQLOV S FEDERATI ON OF TEACHERS, )
LOCAL NO 1463, )
Unfair Practice
ChargingParty, ) Case No. S-CE-2
VS. )
)
CLOVI S UNI FI ED SCHOOL DI STRI CT, )
)
Respondent . )
)

Appearances: Garry G Mathiason, Larry P. Schapiro and Thomas E. Canmpagne, Attorneys
(Littler, Mendel son, Fastiff & Tichy), for Clovis Unified School District; Law ence
Rosenzwei g, Attorney (Levy, Koszdin, Coldschmid & Sroloff), for Clovis Federation of
Teachers, Local No. 1463.

Before Kenneth A. Perea, Hearing Oficer.

| NTRODUCTI ON

The events preceding the administrative hearing held on February 7 and 8, 1977
before the Educational Enploynent Relations Board (hereinafter EERB) in the above-
referenced matter are sumarized as foll ows:

(1) On August 9, 1976, Covis Federation of Teachers, Local No. 1463 (hereinafter
Federation) filed with the EERB an unfair practice charge pursuant to the Educational
Empl oynent Rel ations Act, Government Code Section 3540 et seq. (hereinafter EERA),
against Clovis Unified School District (hereinafter District). 1
(2) On August 26, 1976, the EERB dismissed the charge with | eave to amend within

15 cal endar days on the grounds that it failed to state the specific section(s) of

the EERA allegedly violated.

lAII statutory references are to the California Government Code unless
ot herw se not ed.



(3)

al l egi ng that

(4)

pursuant to EERB Energency Regul ation 35005,

On Septenber 10, 1976, the Federation filed an amendnent to the charge

the District violated Section 3543.5(a).

On Septenber 24, 1976, the EERB notified the parties in the matter that

it had determined that the Federation

filed a tinely amendnent to the charge on Septenber 10, 1976, and that the charge as

amended stated a prina facie case.

(5)

al | egi ng:

2

On Cctober 13, 1976, the Federation filed a "Second Anended Charge"

During the months of March, 1976, the Superintendent

of the above-nanmed school district met with elenmentary
school faculties and Custer groups of teachers at

Clovis High School. At some of these neetings, held
during school time with nandatory attendance of teachers,
the Superintendent said that if the teachers elect a
bargai ning agent, the adnministration will confront the
bargai ning agent with a list of 150 demands on teacher
performance, including the installation of tine clocks,
no release tinme for dental appointnents, and he further

stated that

the district will spend in excess of $50,000

to hire an agent to deal with the enpl oyees' bargaining
agent. This conduct is in violation of Government Code
Sections 3543.5(a) and (b).

Mor eover,

in further violation of Government Code Sections

3543.5(a) and (b), the adninistration of the above-entitled
school district allowed Carl Tom inson, a classroomteacher
to circulate their no representation petitions on schoo
time. David Ward, a teacher, was allowed release tine
fromhis class to talk to teachers at another school on the
i ssue of no representation. The school district has for-

bi dden enpl oyee organi zations fromusing school time for
anal ogous organi zati onal purposes.

(6) On Novenber 11, 1976, the Federation further amended its charge to correct

a "clerica

over si ght"

alleging that the conduct referred to in the Second Arended

Charge occurred "During the nmonth of March and April, 1976. . ."

(7) The District filed timely answers to all the above charges and anmended

char ges.

2

VWhile the unfair practice charge filed on October 13, 1976 was not | abel ed
fSecond Amended Charge,” at the admnistrative hearing held on February 7_gpd 8
.the hearing officer requested the parties to so refer to it for clarification
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(8 At the administrative hearing on February 7, 1977, the Federation
noved to wi thdraw the second paragraph of the Second Anended Charge beginning with

the words "Moreover, in further .. ." and ending with the words or gani zat i onal

pur poses” 3/ and said notion was grant ed.

FI NDI NGS OF FACT

A.  Events Preceding the Superintendent's Meetings on April 6 and April 8, 1976

To properly assess the precise scope of the expressions made by the District's
Superintendent, Dr. Floyd Buchanan, to certificated enployees of the District, it is
necessary to exami ne the context of the labor relations setting in which they were

made. NLRB v. G ssel Packing Co., 395 U.S. 575, 23 L. Ed. 547, 71 LRRM 2481 (1969).

In [ate February 1976, Associate Superintendent Peter Mehas suggested that
Superint endent Buchanan make a "State of the District" address, as requested by sone
of the District's school site principals and teachers, at the District's school sites
due to Mehas' concern that Buchanan had | ost sonme of his personal association wth
the teaching faculty and site principals in recent years because of the District's
rapi d growt h.

The District's associate and assistant superintendents concurred with Mehas'
recommrendati on. Buchanan then requested Mehas to set up a schedule for visiting the
District's school sites during the nonths of March and April 1976.

The neetings conmenced as schedul ed and Buchanan di scussed with the District's
certificated enployees the followi ng subjects:

(1) The progress and future of the District's "war against illiteracy;"

(2) How many teachers would be hired and how many teachers woul d be
transferred due to the rapid growmth of the District;

3

" Al though in Novenber 1976, the District received a copy of the amendnment from
the Federation, the District agreed to fornmally accept service by the EERB of
the anendnent at the adm nistrative hearing on February 7, 1977.



(3) The $17 mllion budget as it reflected the District's past grow h;
(4) The District's construction of an elenentary school every year;
(5) The extent of the District's building programfor the future; and

(6) The effect of collective bargaining for public school enployees on
the future of the District.

Havi ng established the context of the labor relations setting in which the
enpl oyer expressions were nmade, we shall now turn to the events in April which were

stipulated by the parties as the speeches referred to in the unfair practice charge.

B. The Meetings of April 6 and April 8, 1976

On April 6, 1976, Superinténdent Buchanan addressed Cluster | of the Covis
H gh School which included the social science, English and driver training
departnents. On April 8, 1976, a similar speech was delivered at the Dry Creek
El enentary School with the entire teaching staff present, consisting of approximtely
20 teachers. The neetings were held on school time and teachers attending the
meet i ngs reasonably understood that attendance was mandatory.

Both the April 6 and April 8 nmeetings were divided into three-fifteen mnute
segnments. The first segnent was devoted to subject items one (1) through five (5)
above. The second segnent of Superintendent Buchanan's address concerned collective
bargaining. The final segnment was reserved for questions and answers from teachers
present at the neetings.

There is conflicting testimony in the.record regardi ng precisely what
Dr. Buchanan stated on the subject of collective bargaining at the nmeetings of
April 6 and April 8, 1976. The Federation called six witnesses on its behalf. The
testimony of each witness is sumarized as foll ows:

(1) Ms. Janet Wgim Ms. Wgimwas present at the nmeeting of April 6, 1976

at Covis H gh School. Dr. Buchanan stated to the teachers that if the teachers

4/ At the end of the Superintendent's first presentation covering subject itens
one (1) through five (5) above, several questions were raised by District enployees
regarding collective bargaining and how it would affect the District. Based upon these
guestions, Buchanan decided to incorporate a discussion of collective bargaining into
his presentation at subsequent sites.
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el ected a bargaini ng agent."they" woul d present a list of denmands on teachers
whi ch woul d include such things as tine clocks and the elimnation of release
time for dental appointnents.

Dr. Buchanan stated that open conmunicati on between teachers and adnministrators
'Would no |onger exist, things would have to be nuch nore formal and the "honey"
at nosphere that existed would be dissolved by collective bargaining.

Dr. Buchanan di scussed the possibility of the District being required to pay
for legal advice in order to interpret all the dealings between teachers' organizations
at the cost of sacrificing other things within the District.

Dr. Buchanan cited exanples of schools in New York where the above itens did
exi st and where collective bargaining did exist.

(2) M. Benjanin C.Janeson. M. Janmeson was al so present at the neeting of

April 6, 1976 at O ovis Hi gh School.
Dr. Buchanan stated that several people had asked hi mwhat was going on
regarding collective bargaining within the District and that he had called the
rreeti ng to explain to people his views on collective bargaini ng.
Dr. Buchanan suggested that if collective bargai'ni ng were inplenmented, he
woul d not be able to speak to the teachers very freely. Dr. Buchanan further suggested
that collective bargaining might result in the installation of time clocks and that
peopl e woul d not be able to get release time for dental appointnents.
Dr. Buchanan stated that it would be better for the teachers to go slowy in
the area of collective bargai ning because nost people don't know too nmuch about it.
Dr. Buchanan stated that if collective bargaining took place in the District, the
District would place a "long list" of demands on the bargai ning table.
Dr. Buchanan stated that release time and time clocks would be a matter of
negotiation if a collective bargaining agent was el ect ed.
Dr. Buchanan stated, in answer to a question fromthe teachers regardi ng where

the noney that the District might need to enploy negotiating personnel and |awers
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woul d conme from that the noney for negotiations would cone out of the District's
general fund

Dr. Buchanan stated his observations that sone teachers in the New York
schools were allowed a break in the afternoon and that resulted in a cost of
t housands of dollars to the taxpayers.

(3) Ms. Charlene Dilliard. Ms. Dilliard also attended the April 6, 1976

meeting at dovis H gh School. Dr. Buchanan stated that the District had al ways
tried to be fair with the teachers and had taken care of its teachers and that
col l ective bargaining could bring side effects into the District that would not be

beneficial to "us". Dr. Buchanan stated that he had visited schools in the East and
had seen the effect of unionization in the schools where teachers had demanded things
that had nothing to do with the benefit of children

Dr. Buchanan then stated that he could foresee that if collective bargaining
cane into being it could result in such things as tine clocks being installed on
canpuses, teachers not being given the freedom that they now had and that we
woul d no |longer be able to work together and sit domm and work out our differences
as we had done in the past.

Dr. Buchanan, in answer to a queétion about where the noney would conme fromif
it came to inpasse or negotiations, stated that the noney would have to cone from
the general fund and that it could run up to nmore than $50,000 and that the genera
fund is the sane fund that teachers' salaries cone from

Dr. Buchanan stated that one of the school districts he had visited in New
York had to enploy arned guards due to the disruption within the schools because
all the teachers were on coffee breaks.

Dr. Buchanan stated that if collective bargaining took place the District
could place on the bargaining table a list of 150 demands including such things as
time cl ocks.

Dr. Buchanan stated that time clocks m ght be one of the itens included in

that 150 demand i st.



Dr. Buchanan stated that in collective bargaining, teachers could be held
accountable for every minute of their tinme.

Dr. Buchanan stated that collective bargaining and a contract could cut down
on the flexibility or freedomto work together between the adm nistration and the
teache}s.

Dr. Buchanan stated that the teachers could vote for no representation rather
than the union or the CTA

The list of denﬁnds by the District also potentially included the elimnation
of certain release tine, for exanple, time currently taken for dental appointnents
and this would be subject to negotiations. The District could place on the
bargaining table as one of its demands the elimnation of this type of release tine.

Dr. Buchanan stated that if tine clocks became a provision in the contract the
teachers would be required to put in so nuch tinme and they woul d be penalized for
any tinme that they clocked out.

(4) Ms. Sandra Smith. Ms. Smth testified that she attended a meeting with

Dr. Buchanan at the Tenperance-Kutner School. The parties to the hearing stipul ated
that the meeting at Tenperance;KUtner occurred on March 30, 1976 and that al

testinony fromMs. Smth regarding said meeting would therefore be stricken

(5 M. Enory Haggin. M. Haggin attended the meeting at Dry Creek El ementary
School on April 8, 1976. A

Dr. Buchanan rel ated sone'sfbries about other districts in_the East'fhat had
coIIecfive bargaﬁning | aws and sone of.fhe probl ens that they had.

Dr. Buchanan cited exanpl es about what had happened in othe( school distriéfé
he had visited on the East coast which had collective bar gai ning such as the institution
of tine card machines and the elimination of doctor visit privileges wthout some
kind of formal process or excuse. '

Dr. Buchanan stated that he thought we woul d be well advised not to participate
in collective bargaining at least for a couple of years in order to see howit

was going to work.



Dr. Buchanan said that we need to have trust in each other, and we
coul d have our teacher representatives in schools cooperate on a basis simlar
to the Wnton Act.

At the conclusion of Dr. Buchanan's speech, one of the teachers, David Ward,
said he would like all of the teachers to remain for nmoment. Petitions were then
produced stating |anguage to the effect that the undersigned did not believe that
collective bargaining is in the best interests of the teachers of dovis Unified
School District. David Ward spoke to the effect: "Now that you'wve heard
Dr. Buchanan's side, if you would be interested in si gni_ng these petitions, we
have themhere."

Enory Haggin of fered hearsay evidence of a general conversation between
M. John Welfare, a teacher at dark School, and M. Haggin. M. Wlfare stated that
sone people who had signed pledge cards for California Teachers Association (hereinafter
CTA), had asked that their nanmes be withdrawn or their pledge card be returned.

Dr. Buchanan stated that these things could happen in Covis Unified School
District.

Dr. Buchanan indicated that if negotiations took place the District m ght have
to put a |large nunber of denmands on the bargaining table.

Dr. Buchanan _used the term"proceed slowy" in Iconnecti on with collective
bar gai ni ng.

In answer to a question regarding the cost of collective bargaining for the
District, Dr. Buchanan said it was his understanding that it could run into a

consi derabl e anount of noney and that noney all cane out of one pool and it may well

cone out of "our" pocketbook.
Dr. Buchanan said that we should sit back and see what happens, "til the water
clears," and that there could be sone things that woul d be bad for us to be involved in.

(6) Ms. Judith Farrington. Ms. Farrington attended the neeting at dovis

H gh School on April 6, 1976.



Dr. Buchanan said that if we elect a bargaining agent, one of the things
that the school district would do would be to install time clocks and restrict
rel ease time for doctor's appointnents.

The District presented two witnesses, Dr. Peter Mehas and Superi ntendent
Buchanan. Their testinmony is sunmmarized as foll ows:

(1) Dr. Peter Mehas. Dr. Mehas attended the nmeeting at C ovis Hi gh Schoo

on April 6, 1976. Superintendent Buchanan appealed to the teachers in attendance
to "go slow and pl ow deep." He asked themto take a close | ook and move
cautiously before anybody nade any rash deci sions.

Dr. Buchanan said that it was conceivable that the District would have to
counter the teachers' initial proposal by bringing up another 150 itens that m ght
not even be relevant to the needs of the District. As an exanple, Dr. Buchanan
said that there was talk in the administrative circles of putting in time clocks
at a school and Dr. Buchanan let the teachers be aware that this was a negotiable
item under collective bargaining.

Dr. Buchanan made everyone at the neeting aware that the nmoney for collective
bargai ning had to cone from sonmewhere and that in the District it would probably have
to come fromthe general fund

In answer to a question regardi ng what would be the choices on the ball ot,

Dr. Buchanan answered that they could choose one of the representatives or they could
choose no representation at all

(2) Superintendent Buchanan. At the neetings of April 6 and April 8

Superi nt endent Buchanan explained to the teachers that principals had substantia
aut onornry concerni ng wor ki ng condi ti ons, working hours, and teacher starting times under
the existing structure of the District. Buchanan then enunerated some of the things

that coul d happen under collective bargaining. Dr. Buchanan testified that he



stated to the enpl oyees that:
.one of the things that codld possi bl y happen is that
teachers could conme in with |arge demands, the School
Board cones back with |arge denands. Then sonewhere
in the mddle they try to decide a working package
for the School District.
Buchanan explained that this type of process could restrict prerogatives of school
principals due to the binding nature of the contract and that this in turn would
apply to medical and dental |eaves which may be covered by the contract.
The subject of tinme clocks entered into Dr. Buchanan's presentation. Buchanan
testified:
The question came up about |ength of the school day and
sone of the things that are—working conditions that are
di scussed in collective bargaining and | pointed out that
sonetinmes people on both sides ask for ridiculous positions
in hopes of getting a concession fromthe other side in the
relati on what they want, and | pointed out for exanple that
tinme clocks is one of these things, and people sonetinmes in
the bargaining process end up giving the other person somne-
thing that nmight be a ridiculous request that they really
didn't want, but they wanted to trade away, and that as a
result sometinmes we do end up with such things as tine
clocks, we end up with principals that no |onger have the
prerogative of interpreting school tinme and duties of
teachers, and so forth
Continui ng, Buchanan explained to the teachers that he had observed that some
of the contracts that had been negotiated were 150 pages long or |onger and that
the CTA had prepared 240 pages of demands in some school districts. Buchanan asked
the teachers to nmake their initial proposals nore reasonable and to follow the
negotiations to see that the exclusive representative did not accept sonething as
“hei nous" as time clocks to get sonething in return that was inportant to it
and that nmay or nmay not be inportant to the teachers and/or the children's' education.
Dr. Buchanan al so expressed to the enpl oyees his concern about the
expense to the District of negotiations. Buchanan stated that he had read
a recent article in the newspaper involving Fresno Unified School District

and a statenent by that District's then superintendent, Dr. Finch, that the

District would have to spend $50,000 in attorney's fees to negotiate on
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behal f of the Fresno Unified School District. Buchanan then stated that
within the near future it could cost the District $50,000 to adm nister

enpl oyer - enpl oyee rel ati ons under col l ective bar gai ni ng

Al of the witnesses testified fromnenory regarding Dr. Buchanan's
statements. Al witnesses, with the exception of Ms. Farrington and Superintendent
Buchanan who were representatives of the parties, were sequestered prior to
testifying.

Resol ution of conflicting testinony by witnesses such as those in this matter,
all of whomappeared sincere and credible, is a difficult task. Menories, however,
are often eroded by the passage of tine. It is therefore understandabl e that
there may be some inconsistency anong w t nesses because the hearing was held several
nont hs after the subject speech. It therefore appears likely that any inconsistencies
in testinony were the result of the passage of time rather than any deliberate
attenpt by any of the witnesses to color the truth. '

It is concluded that Dr. Buchanan stated at the meetings of April 6 and 8, 1976
that if collective negotiations were inplemented in the District it was Buchanan's
opinion that relations between the District and the teachers would becone nore
formal. Dr. Buchanan further stated that if the teachers choose to bargainwith the
District that the District would have to counter the teachers' denmands with a |ong
list of demands which might run as high as 150 items. Dr. Buchanan stated that
itenms such as release time for dental appointments, which was currently adm ni stered
informally by the school principals, and tine clocks, would be subject to negotiations.
Dr. Buchanan cautioned that collective negotiations could possibly be expensive to
the District and woul d require sacrificing other budgeting itens. Dr. Buchanan cited
exanpl es of what he considered to be sone of the negative effects of collective
bargai ning as he had observed themin public schools outside California which
i ncl uded having to use armed guards to supervise students during the teachers' coffee
br eaks.

The conclusions regarding Dr. Buchanan's statenents at the neetings of April 6
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and 8 are based upon Dr. Buchanan's own testinmony as corroborated by the District's

w tness, Dr. Mehas, and four of the five witnesses for the Federation whose testinony
has been considered regarding Dr. Buchanan's speech. The testinmony of Ms. Farrington
the only witness whose testinmony substantially differed fromall other witnesses,

is found to be inaccurate. As noted above, said inaccuracy can be explained due to

the passage of time between Buchanan's speech and the heari ng.

I SSUES

(1) Whether Sections 3543.5(a) and (b) may be retroactively applied to
conduct occurring in April 1976

(2) \Wether the Federation's Second Anended Charge was tinmely filed pursuant
to the EERB's administrative rules and regul ations.

(3) Whether the District's superintendent may informcertificated
enpl oyees that in the course of negotiations it is possible for 150 denmands
to be placed on the negotiating table, including such topics as release tine
and time clocks, without violating Sections 3543.5(a) and (b).

(4) \Wether the District's superintendent may informcertificated
enpl oyees that the expenses of being represented in negotiations could exceed

$50, 000 for a school district, wthout violating Sections 3543.5(a) and (b).

CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

THE CONSTI TUTI ONALI TY OF THE RETROACTI VE APPLI CATI ON
OF_SECTI ONS 3543.5(a) AND_3543. 5(h)

Respondent strongly urges that the charges in this matter should be dism ssed
since the expressions by Superintendent Buchanan giving rise to the charges occurred
in April 1976, and the retroactive application of Sections 3543.5(a) and 3543.5(b)

thereto would violate the federal and state Constitutions' nandate against ex post
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facto Iavvs.5

The EERB itself has recently had the opportunity to exam ne the question

of Sections 3543. 5(a) and 3543.5(b) retroactive application in San Dieguito Faculty

Association v. San Dieguito Union H gh School District, EERB Decision No. 22,

Septenber 2, 1977. |In considering the issue of the constitutional validity of the

EERA' s retroactivity amendnent, the Board decl ared:

As a statutory adm nistrative agency with no powers
to find a statute unconstitutional, we are bound to
interpret the EERA as we find it and |leave to the
judiciary questions concerning the constitutional
validity of the EERA on its face.

Accordingly, the hearing officer has no alternative but to find as the Board

has in San Di eguito, that he is without power to find Sections 3543.5(a) and 3543.5(b),

‘retroactively applied, unconstitutional and |eave to the judiciary any questions

regarding the constitutional validity of the EERA

THE AMENDED UNFAI R PRACTI CE CHARGE FI LED
ON SEPTEMBER 10, 1976

Respondent argues that the Second Amended Charge filed on Septenber 10, 1976
. shoul d be disnissed because it was not timely filed.
The original charge filed by the Federation on August 9, 1976 failed to state a

prima facie case pursuant to 8 Cal. Adm n. Code Section 35004 in that it failed to

al  ege which specific section(s) of the EERA had been violated. On August 30, 1976,

the Regional Director dismssed said charge with | eave to amend within 15 cal endar days..

5The EERA, Chapter 961 of the Statutes of 1975, effectuated Sections 3543.5(a)
and 3543.5(b) on July 1, 1976. By Chapter 421 of the Statutes of 1976, the California
State Legislature on July 10, 1976 anended the EERA and made Sections 3541.5, 3543.5
and 3543.6 retroactively operative to April 1, 1976. '
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The hearing officer assigned to process the case correctly determ ned pursuant

to 8 Cal. Admi n. Code Section 35007(a) that by letter filed Septenber 10, 1976 the

Federation filed a tinely amendnent alleging therein that respondent "has engaged in or
is engaging in an unfair practice within the nmeaning of Sections 3543.5(a) of the
California Government Code .. ."

The District's argunent that the anended charge was untinely filed for failure
to file within 20 days froma letter fromthe Acting Director to the Federati on dated
August 18, 1976 nmust fail. The EERB's letter of August 18, 1976 nerely stated that "we
request you submit your anended unfair |abor practice charge postdated no later than
Tuesday, August 24, 1976." Said "request" is not construed to have been an order from
the EERB, non-conpliance with which would result in the inmmediate dismssal of the

v charge without |leave to anmend. The Federation was instead warned that if an amendnment

was not filed by August 24, 1976, the EERB would then dism ss the charge at sonme time
in the future. The EERB carried out this warning on August 30, 1976 when the charge
was dismssed with [eave to amend within 15 cal endar days pursuant to a formal

"Notice of Dismissal". The Federation's letter filed Septenber 10, 1976 was therefore

atinely filed amendnent to the charge.

SUPERI NTENDENT BUCHANAN S SPEECHES OF APRIL 6 AND 8

A The Applicable Standard for Pure Speech Cases Arising under the EERA

Before it may be determ ned whether a violation of Sections 3543.5(a) and
3543.5(b) occurred as a result of Buchanan's speeches on April 6 and 8, 1976, the
standard by which such speech shall be judged nmust be established.

The Federation alleges a violation of Sections 3543.5(a) and 3543.5(b) which
st at es:

It shall be unlawful for a public school enployer to:

r

(a) Inmpose or threaten to inpose reprisals on enpl oyees,
to discrimnate or threaten to discrimnate against
enpl oyees, or otherwise to interfere with, restrain,
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or coerce enpl oyees because of their exercise of
rights guaranteed by this chapter

(b) Deny to enployee organi zations rights guaranteed
to themby this chapter.

The conduct of which the Federation conmplains in this case consists solely
of the speeches of Superintendent Buchanan before teachers of the District.
Section 8(c) of the Labor Managenment Rel ations Act6 protects such speech in private
sector labor relations so long as it contains no threat of force or reprisal or

7 But before Section 8(c) became lawin 1948, the United States

prom se of benefit.
Supreme Court had occasion to outline the rough paraneters of an enployer's right

to speak to its enployees. In Virginia Electric and Power Co. v. NLRB, 314 U S. 469,

9 LRRM 405, 408 (1941), the National Labor Relations Board (NLRB) concluded that the
enpl oyer had interfered with its enployees' right to organize. The Court feared that
the Board had based its conclusion solely on a poster and speeches which in very
general terms urged the formation of an "independent" (conpany) union instead of
consi dering the whole course of enployer's conduct, which included interrogation

of enpl oyees regarding union activities, and a supervisor's threats of discharge for
"messing with the C.1.0." The Court considered the poster and speeches not to be

coercive in thensel ves and remanded the case to the NLRB sayi ng:

Nei t her the [National Labor Rel ations] Act nor the Board's
order here enjoins the enployer fromexpressing its view

629 U.S.C. Section 158(c).
?Section 8(c) of the Labor Managenent Rel ations Act states:

The expressing of any views, argunent, or opinion, or the

di ssem nation thereof, whether inwitten, printed, graphic,
or visual form shall not constitute or be evidence of an
unfair labor practice under any of the provisions of this
Act, if such expression contains no threat of reprisal or
force or prom se of benefit.
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on | abor policies or problems. The enployer in this case
is as free now as ever to take any side it may choose on
this controversial issue. But certainly conduct, though
evidenced in part by speech, nmay anobunt in connection with
ot her circunstances to coercion within the nmeaning of the
Act. If the total activities of an enployer restrain or
coerce his enmployees in their free choice, then those
enpl oyees are entitled to the protection of the Act. And
in determning whether a course of conduct anounts to
restraint or coercion, pressure exerted vocally by the
enpl oyer may no nore be disregarded than pressure exerted
i n other ways.

Fol lowing this decision, the NLRB continued to limt enployer speech, in
cases involving little nore than pure speech and had at |east some success
obt ai ni ng enforcenént of its orders in this case in the Courts of Appeal.”8 In
1948, the Taft Hartl ey Anendments to the NLRA, including Section 8(c), were intro-
duced in Congress. The House version of Section 8(c) would have restricted the NLRB

to using only enployer statements which constituted threats or prom ses in and of
9 10

t hensel ves. The Senate version took the contexts of statenents into account.

A conference commttee of both houses wote the final version which was a conprom se
between the two original versions. Scholars dispute whether the final version
represents an gpactment of the First Amendnent or whether its authors meant for it

to go further.

8See Anerican Tube Bending Co., 44 NLRB 121, 11 LRRM 61 (1942) enf.den. 134 F. 2d
994, 12 LRRM615; dark Bros. Co., C. A 2, 70 NLRB 802, 18 LRRM 1360 (1946), enfd, other
grounds 163 F 2d 313, 20 LRRM 2436 (1947); Mnunental Life Insurance Co. , CA. 6,
69 NLRB 247, 18 LRRM 1206, enfd. 162 F.2d 340, 20 LRRM 2225 (1947).

“Morris, The Devel oping Labor Law, BNA, 1971, pp. 72-73.

101 pid.

llGorman, Robert, Basic Text on Labor Law, West Publishing Co., 1976, p. 150.
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In NLRB v. G ssel Packing Co., supra, Chief Justice Warren stated that

Section 8(c) "inplenents" the First Anendnent. The hearing officer, however, need
not deci de whether Section 8(c), and all of the case law following it need be

taken cogni zance of pursuant to Fire Fighters Union v. Gty of Vallejo, 12 Cal. 3d

608 (1974) nor whether Section 8(c) is constitutionally mandated. Virginia Electric

and Power Co., supra, expressly protects noncoercive statenents of opinions on |abor

probl ens, pursuant to the First Anendnent. Courts recogni zed | ong before Section 8(c)

becanme law that a threat of reprisal was one of the sorts of coercive conduct

referred to in that decision.™ As will be discussed bel ow, Buchanan's statenments,

. 13
whi ch nust stand or fall as threats, were not threatening.

B. Application of the Standard to Superintendent Buchanan's Speeches of April 6 and 8

Exami nation of the facts in this case in light of the standards established

inVirginia Electric and Power Co. and G ssel leads to the conclusion that the

speech in question did not contain a threat of reprisal or discrimnation. The
evi dence shows that the "State of the District" address, covering five separate
subjects in addition to negotiations, was conceived of and delivered as a neans
of bridging a comunication gap between the superintendent and the enpl oyees of a
rapi dly expandi ng suburban school district. The subject of negotiating was only
added after the first address when it becane obvious through questions from

enpl oyees in attendance that the topic was of vital interest to the enpl oyees.

12See e.g. NLRB v. Brown Brockmeyer, 143 F. 2d 542, 14 LRRM 763 (1944), CA. 6.

13

Wil e there was some evidence in the record that some authorization cards
signed by certain enployees were w thdrawn by enployees and that recruiting efforts
by the Federation were difficult, such evidence was based upon hearsay, is speculative
and | acks a showi ng of a causal nexus between Dr. Buchanan's addresses on April 6 and
8 and the withdrawal s of authorization cards and recruiting efforts. Accordingly,
it is concluded that charging party has not shown, by a preponderance of the evidence,
that there was any actual interference, restraint or coercion in the enpl oyees'
exercise of their free will in violation of Section 3543.5(a).
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The subject of nedical and dental |eaves was expressed by Buchanan as one
of the things that possibly "coul d" be affected through the give-and-take negotiations
process of negotiating. The superintendent did not, however, threaten to
curtail nedical and dental |eaves if negotiating was inplenented. His
speech can only reasonably be interpreted to be the expression of his opinion
regardi ng one of the possibilities under negotiating.

Nor did Buchanan threaten to install time clocks should the certificated
enpl oyees of the District choose to institute negotiating. Rather
Superi nt endent Buchanan used tinme clocks as an exanple of what were in his
opi nion, "ridiculous" conditions that may result when peopl e begin negotiations from
extrene positions which they intend to trade away during negoti ati ons.

On the subject of the District's presentation of initial demands on the
negotiating table, Buchanan expressed to the teachers, as an exanple of what in his
opi ni on happens when the parties do not approach negotiations reasonably, that
the District would have to counter the teachers' initial proposal with a long |ist
of demands which might run as high as 150 itens. Buchanan's personal assessnent
of what the District might do during the give-and-take negotiation process cannot
reasonably be interpreted as a threat.

Finally, Superintendent Buchanan expressed his concern regarding the cost of
the District of the negotiating process, using as an exanple Fresno Unified
School District, where the superintendent was quoted in the press as stating
that the Fresno School District would have to spend $50,000 in attorneys fees to
negoti ate on behalf of the school district. Buchanan then went on to state that
the Legislature had not allocated funds to school districts to offset the increased
costs of collective bargaining, that such costs nust cone fromthe same schoo
budget as salaries and that it would not surprise himif within a year or two $50, 000
woul d not be an unreasonabl e amount to have budgeted for collective bargaining in the
Covis Unified School District.

Li ke the superintendent's statenments regardi ng nedical and dental |eaves, tine
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clocks, and initial demands, Buchanan's statenments regarding the costs of
negotiating cannot be construed to have been an actual or inplied threat.
Buchanan's speech was clearly the expression of his view or opinion

wherein he reiterated to the enpl oyees a newspaper article he had read regarding
Fresno Unified School District, stated his concern over the fact that the
Legi sl ature had not allocated funds to the local school districts to offset costs
to the school budget for negotiating and expressed an opinion that it

woul d "not surprise ne if $50,000 would be a reasonable'anuunt to have budget ed
for collective bargaining in a year or two." Such vague and casual opinions are
simply not threats within the meani ng of Section 3543.5(a) and are therefore

prot ected speech pursuant to the First Amendnment and Virginia Electric and Power Co

supra.

In the absence of a threat, the burden is upon the Federation to prove by a
preponderance of the evidence that there was actual interference, restraint or
coercion in the enpl oyees' exercise of their free will. The Federation has failed

to neet that burden in this case

Even assum ng that the speech in question was not protected pursuant to the

First Armendment and Virginia Electric and Power Co., supra, it would still be

necessary to disnm ss the charge. In San Dieqguito, supra, the EERB held that in

order to find a violation of Section 3543.5(a):

. .we would at a m ni mumhave to concl ude that
the District's conduct was carried out with the
intent to interfere with the rights of the

enpl oyees to choose an exclusive representative
or that the District's conduct had the natura
and probabl e consequence of interfering with the
enpl oyees exercise of their rights to choose an
excl usive representative notwithstanding the
enpl oyer's intent or notivation.
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As stated above, the uncontradicted evidence shows that éuchanan's "state of
the District" address was conceived of and delivered as a neans of bridging a
comuni cati on gap between Superintendent Buchanan and the enployees of a rapidly
expandi ng suburban school district. Furthernore, the subject of negotiations was
only added as an afterthought when questions were posed on the subject from
enpl oyees during Buchanan's first address. There is no evidence in the record
therefore, fromwhich to conclude that the subject speech was intended to interfere
with the rights of enployees to choose an exclusive representative

Furthernore, the hearing officer cannot conclude that the subject speech
had the natural and probabl e consequence of interfering with the enpl oyees' exercise
of their rights to choose an exclusive representative notw thstandi ng the enployer's

intent or motivation. As in San Dieguito, it is concluded that "the possibility

that the District's conduct in question had the opposite effect of encouraging a
vote for representation is at least as great, if not greater, than the possibility
that the District's conduct had the effect of discouraging enployees fromvoting

for representation by an enpl oyee organization."

C. Application of the Findings to Section 3543.5(b)

The Federation has additionally alleged that Superintendent Buchanan's speeches
of April 6 and 8 were a violation of Section 3543.5(b).
Section 3543.5(b) states:
.1t shall be unlawful for a public school enployer to:

(b) Deny to enployee organizations rights guaranteed to
themby this chapter.

The Federation apparently contends that its rights as an enpl oyee organization
to conduct a preelection canpaign free fromthreats of reprisals or discrimnation
agai nst enpl oyees and/or interference, restraint or coercion of enployees because of

their exercise of rights guaranteed by the EERA were denied

-20-



Having found, however, that the employees of the District were not threatened
with’reprisals or discrimination nor actually interfered with, restrained or
coerced, pursuant to Section 3543.5(a), it cannot be found that any rights of the
Federation were concomitantly denied in this case.

In conclusion, it should be noted that the fact that Buchanan's addresses
on April 6 and 8 took place during normal school hours and that attendance was
reasonably understood to be mandatory does not alter the findings that no
violation of Sections 3543.5(a) or 3543.5(b) occurred. Charging party did not
show through direct testimony that it asked for nor was denied equal opportunity
to make préelection speeches duriﬁg school time nor that the Federation did not
have alternative means to carry its message to the employees. Thus, under the
facts of this case, it would be premature to begin formulating guidelines regarding

so called "captive-audience" speeches.

ORDER
The unfair practice charge filed by the Clovis Federation of Teachers, Local
No. 1463, is hereby dismissed.

Pursuant to Title 8, California Administrative Code, Section 35029, this

recommended decision and order shall become final on October 20, 1977, unless a
party files a timely statement of exceptions. See 8 Cal. Admin. Code Section 35030.

Dated: October 8, 1977

¢~ Kenneth A. Perea
Hearing Officer
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